The Guam Board of Examiners for Pharmacy

Regular Board Meeting

Thursday, September 19, 2024 at 7:30 AM.

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89844311795?pwd=8HHN5Nui5LQiUYcjLDsxv8RNPHnPFl.1

Meeting ID: 898 4431 1795 Passcode: 121327 MINUTES

Item		Discussion		Responsible Party	Reporting Timeframe	Status
I	Call to Order	Meeting Chaired by: M. Gabriel		Chair	0753	Call to Order
		A. Roll Call: GBEP Members Present at HPLO Conference: Melissa Gabriel, Chairperson Mart Mariano, Treasurer □ Jerry Caruso, Member Memb	Other Attendees Present at HPLO: Baltazar (Tre) Hattori III, HPLO Zennia Pecina, HPLO, Administrator Virtual Attendance: Breanna Sablan, HPLO Peter John Camacho, DPHSS	Chair	0753	Quorum Established
		B. Confirmation of Public Notice: Guam Daily Post: 9/12/24 and 9/17/24				Confirmed
II	Approval of Agenda	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd :A. Mariano		GBEP	0753	Unanimously Adopted Agenda
III	Review and Approval of Minutes	A. Mariano proposed amendments to the July 18 minutes, specifically referencing item number three, which concerned the approval of the minutes. He highlighted that the last item involved a transition ratio of five to one, suggesting that this should be updated once the new pharmacist is hired. Additionally, he pointed out that on the last page, number six, the final item about the website setup should pertain to the pharmacy rather than medicine. A. Mariano proposed amendments to the August minutes, noting that board member J. Caruso was absent. He referred to page eight, specifically the last paragraph, stating that it incorrectly mentioned some physician assistants being authorized, whereas it should clarify that all physician assistants are authorized. <i>Motion to Approve as Amended: M. Gabriel; 2nd: J. Sana</i>		GBEP	0754	Unanimously Approved as Amended
IV	HPLO Administrator's Report	Z. Pecina delivered the administrator's report, announcing that J. Carruso had officially resigned from the board, effective immediately, and that the resignation had been submitted to the governor's office for their awareness. She encouraged board members to provide any recommendations for a replacement,		Z. Pecina	0756	Noted

Item	Discussion	Responsible Party	Reporting Timeframe	Status
	mentioning that applications could be sent to potential candidates for submission. M. Gabriel noted that there had been a previous application from K. Lee. In response, Z. Pecina stated that she would follow up with the governor's office to confirm whether the existing application could be used or if a new one would need to be submitted. Z. Pecina continued her report, informing the board that they currently consist of five members and referencing the NPDB's recommendation that the board consider including a public member as part of their composition. She explained that if a public member were added, the board would need to think about maintaining an odd number of voting members. Z. Pecina mentioned that the updated user regulations already include a certified technician, keeping the board at five members, with four pharmacists and one technician. If a public member were added, the board would increase to six members, but the public member could be designated as a non-voting participant to maintain an odd number for voting purposes. She emphasized that this recommendation aligns with a broader regulatory trend across boards, as most other boards already include public members, with pharmacy being an exception. Z. Pecina also addressed disciplinary cases, reporting that there are currently two complaints on record, one of which has been assigned to juries. She suggested that the board either reassign the case or contact juries for an update on the status. Regarding the board's rules and regulations, Z. Pecina noted progress, mentioning that all administrative items have been incorporated, and encouraged the board to aim for completion by the end of the month, as they were down to the final ten pages. A. Mariano added that,	Party	Timeframe	
GBEP Complaints	formal letter from the legal office to be submitted to the board. GBEP-CO-16-01 – On-going. M. Gabriel confirmed that the two complaints remain ongoing and are still pending with legal, noting that J. Caruso has not yet completed his part in the process. M. Gabriel expressed a desire to speak with J.	GBEP	0800	Noted
	whether there was an alternative approach but acknowledged that Caruso had already drafted the letter. GBEP-CO-24-02 – On-going			Tabled
New Business	 Seo Ho Yoo Motion to Conditionally Approved Pending Passing MPJG: A. Mariano; 2nd: J. Sana Heather M. Sweeso Motion to Conditionally Approved Pending Passing MPJG; A. Mariano; 2nd: J. Sana PHARMACIST BY EXAMINATION: Corey D. Duenas	GBEP	0801	Unanimously Conditionally Approved Unanimously Conditionally Approved Unanimously Approved Unanimously Conditionally
	GBEP	mentioning that applications could be sent to potential candidates for submission. M. Gabriel noted that there had been a previous application from K. Lee. In response, Z. Pecina stated that she would follow up with the governor's office to confirm whether the existing application could be used or if a new one would need to be submitted. Z. Pecina continued her report, informing the board that they currently consist of five members and referencing the NPDB's recommendation that the board consider including a public member sa part of their composition. She explained that if a public member were added, the board would need to think about maintaining an odd number of voting members. Z. Pecina mentioned that the updated user regulations already include a certified technician, keeping the board at five members, with four pharmacists and one technician. If a public member were added, the board would increase to six members, but the public member could be designated as a non-voting participant to maintain an odd number for voting purposes. She emphasized that this recommendation aligns with a broader regulatory trend across boards, as most other boards already include public members, with pharmacy being an exception. Z. Pecina also addressed disciplinary cases, reporting that there are currently two complaints on record, one of which has been assigned to juries. She suggested that the board either reassign the case or contact juries for an update on the status. Regarding the board's rules and regulations, Z. Pecina noted progress, mentioning that all administrative items have been incorporated, and encouraged the board to aim for completion by the end of the month, as they were down to the final ten pages. A. Mariano added that, concerning the two complaints, the board has reached conclusions on the findings, but they are awaiting a formal letter from the legal office to be submitted to the board. GBEP-CO-16-01 - On-going. M. Gabriel confirmed that the two complaints remain ongoing and are still pending with legal	mentioning that applications could be sent to potential candidates for submission. M. Gabriel noted that there had been a previous application from K. Lee. In response, Z. Pecina stated that she would follow up with the governor's office to confirm whether the existing application could be used or if a new one would need to be submitted. Z. Pecina continued her report, informing the board that they currently consist of five members and referencing the NPDB's recommendation that the board consider including a public member as part of their composition. She explained that if a public member were added, the board would need to think about maintaining an odd number of voting members. Z. Pecina mentioned that the updated user regulations already include a certified technician, keeping the board at five members, with four pharmacists and one technician. If a public member were added, the board would increase to six members, but the public member could be designated as a non-voting participant to maintain an odd number for voting purposes. She emphasized that this recommendation aligns with a broader regulatory trend across boards, as most other boards already include public members, with pharmacy being an exception. Z. Pecina also addressed disciplinary cases, reporting that there are currently two complaints on record, one of which has been assigned to juries. She suggested that the board either reassign the case or contact juries for an update on the status. Regarding the board's rules and regulations, Z. Pecina noted progress, mentioning that all administrative items have been incorporated, and encouraged the board to aim for completion by the end of the month, as they were down to the final ten pages. A. Mariano added that, concerning the two complaints, the board has reached conclusions on the findings, but they are awaiting a formal letter from the legal office to be submitted to the board. GBEP Complaints GBEP Complaints A. PHARMACIST BY ENDORSEMENT: 1. See Ho Yoo Motion to Conditionally Approved Pendin	mentioning that applications could be sent to potential candidates for submission. M. Gabriel noted that there had been a previous application from K. Lee. In response, Z. Pecina stated that she would follow up with the governor's office to confirm whether the existing application could be used or if a new one would need to be submitted. Z. Pecina continued her report, informing the board that they currently consist of five members and referencing the NPDB's recommendation that the board consider including a public member as part of their composition. She explained that if a public member were added, the board would need to think about maintaining an odd number of voting members. Z. Pecina mentioned that the updated user regulations already include a certified technician, keeping the board at five members, with four pharmacists and one technician. If a public member were added, the board would increase to six members, but the public member could be designated as a non-voting participant to maintain an odd number for voting purposes. She emphasized that this recommendation aligns with a broader regulatory trend across boards, as most other boards already include public members, with pharmacy being an exception. Z. Pecina also addressed disciplinary cases, reporting that there are currently two complaints on record, one of which has been assigned to juries. She suggested that the board either reassign the case or contact juries for an update on the status. Regarding the board's rules and regulations, Z. Pecina noted progress, mentioning that all administrative items have been incorporated, and encouraged the board to aim for completion by the end of the month, as they were down to the final ten pages. A. Mariano added that, concerning the two complaints, the board has reached conclusions on the findings, but they are awaiting a formal letter from the legal office to be submitted to the board. GBEP Confloid GBEP-CO-16-01 - On-going. New Business A. PHARMACIST BY ENDORSEMENT: 1. See He Yeo Motion to Conditi

Item	Discussion	Responsible Party	Reporting Timeframe	Status
	C. PHARMACY TECHNICIANS:			Approved
	1. Christian Dale S. Dionisio			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	2. Mary Ann Connie C. Justo			Tabled
	Tabled until next meeting pending more documents.			140104
	D. PHARMACIES/FACILITIES/WHOLESALES:			
	1. Drake Pharmacy Solutions LLC			Tabled
	Tabled until next meeting pending applications.			
	E. Renewals			
	Local Pharmacies/Facilities/Wholesales:			
	1. Island Family Pharmacy (PCY-068)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	2. Super Drug Pharmacy Dededo (PCY-026)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	3. Guam Memorial Hospital Authority Pharmacy (PCY-021)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	4. ITC Pharmacy I (PCY-014)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	5. ITC Pharmacy II (PCY-015)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	6. Nobility Distributors, LLC (PHW-036)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	7. JC Marketing, Inc. dba JCME Distributors (PHW-004)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	8. MedicaGuam, LLC (PHW-033)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	9. Guam Veterinary Supply (PHW-015)			Unanimously
	Missing verification of a local agent and to provide their state license number.			Conditionally
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	Non-Resident Pharmacies:			
	1. OptumRx, Inc. dba OptumRx (NR-PCY069)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	2. CoverMyMeds Pharmacy LLC (NR-PCY060)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	3. CoverMyMeds Pharmacy LLC (NR-PCY091)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	4. CoverMyMeds Pharamcy LLC (NR-PCY093)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	monon to Approve. J. Sund, 2 . A. Murtuno		1	

Item	Discussion	Responsible Party	Reporting Timeframe	Status
	5. Fountain Plaza Pharmacy, LLC (NR-PCY103)	2 112 1,		Unanimously
	Missing copy of NPI, CSR, and Registration with DRT.			Conditionally Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: A. Mariano; 2 nd : J. Sana			Approved
	6. Medvantx Specialty Pharmacy (NR-PCY061)			Unanimously
	Pending Registration with DRT			Conditionally Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: A. Mariano; 2 nd : J. Sana			
	7. DivvyMed, LLC dba divvyDose (NR-PCY089)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Eustaquio			Approved
	8. WellDyneRx, LLC dba HealthDyne Pharmacy (NR-PCY067)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Eustaquio			Approved
	9. Alphascript, Inc. (NR-PCY072)			Unanimously
	Missing verification of state license.			Conditionally Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: A. Mariano; 2 nd : J. Sana			
	10. Birdi, Inc. (NR-PCY011)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Eustaquio			Approved
	11. Birdi, Inc. (NR-PCY038)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Eustaquio			Approved
	12. Birdi, Inc. (NR-PCY039)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Eustaquio			Approved
	13. Accredo Health Group, Inc. (NR-PCY018)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	14. Accredo Health Group, Inc. (NR-PCY086)			Unanimously
	Missing verification of state license			Conditionally Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: M. Gabriel; 2 nd : A. Mariano			
	15. Sina Drug, LLC dba Onco360 (NR-PCY023)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	16. Sina Drug, LLC dba Onco360 (NR-PCY028)			Unanimously Approved
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			**
	17. Sorkin's Rx LTD. Dba CareMed Pharmaceutical Services (NR-PCY107)			Unanimously Approved
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			
	18. Optime Care, Inc. (NR-PCY062)			Unanimously Conditionally
	Missing copy of DEA license			Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			
	19. Factor One Source Pharmacy LLC dba InfuCare Rx of MD (NR-PCY066)			Unanimously Conditionally
	Pending copy of CSR			Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			
	20. Eagle Pharmacy, LLC (NR-PCY108)			Unanimously Approved
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			
	21. KnippeRx, Inc. (NR-PCY088)			Unanimously

Item	Discussion	Responsible Party	Reporting Timeframe	Status
	Pending copy of state license.	1 arry	1 men une	Conditionally
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	22. Homescripts.com, LLC dba Homescripts (NR-PCY101)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	23. Express Scripts Specialty Distribution Services, Inc. (NR-PCY050)			Unanimously
	Missing copy of state license.			Conditionally Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Прриотеа
	24. MAH Pharmacy dba CHD Pharmacy (NR-PCY042)			Unanimously
	Missing copy of state license			Conditionally Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Прричен
	25. Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy, LLC dba Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy #15443 (NR-PCY016)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	26. Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy, LLC dba Walgreens Specialty Pharmacy #16287 (NR-PCY058)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	Non-Resident Facilities/Wholesalers:			
	1. Hawaii Mega-Cor, Inc. (NR-PHW028)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
	2. Azenta US Inc. (NR-PHW071)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	3. McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. (NR-PHW046)			Unanimously
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			Approved
	4. McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. (NR-PHW047)			Unanimously Approved
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			
	5. McKesson Medical-Surgical Inc. (NR-PHW054)			Unanimously Approved
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano			
	6. Eversana Life Science Services, LLC (NR-PHW039)			Unanimously Conditionally
	Missing DEA state license.			Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			
	7. Eversana Life Science Services, LLC (NR-PHW040)			Unanimously Conditionally
	Needs to update DEA license.			Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			**
	8. Eversana Life Science Services, LLC (NR-PHW041)			Unanimously Conditionally
	Missing DEA state license.			Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			TT : 1
	9. Eversana Life Science Services, LLC (NR-PHW042)			Unanimously Conditionally
	Missing DEA state license.			Approved
	Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			TT : 1
	10. Priority Healthcare Distribution Inc. dba CuraScript SD Specialty Distribution (NR-PHW014)			Unanimously Approved
	Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			11

	Item	Discussion	Responsible Party	Reporting Timeframe	Status
		11. Priority Healthcare Distribution Inc. dba CuraScript SD Specialty Distribution (NR-PHW015)			Unanimously
	 Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano 12. Priority Healthcare Distribution Inc. dba CuraScript SD Specialty Distribution (NR-PHW022) Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano 13. Moderna US, Inc. (NR-PHW081) 				Approved
					Unanimously
					Approved
					Unanimously
		Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			Approved
		14. J. Knipper and Company, Inc. (NR-PHW011)			Unanimously Conditionally
		Missing registration under Guam Law.			Approved
		Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			11
		15. J. Knipper and Company, Inc. (NR-PHW020)			Unanimously Conditionally
		Missing registration under Guam Law.			Approved
		Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			
		16. J. Knipper and Company, Inc. (NR-PHW021)			Unanimously
		Missing registration under Guam Law.			Conditionally Approved
		Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			11
	17. Upsher-Smith Laboratories, LLC (NR-PHW024) Missing registration under Guam Law.				Unanimously
					Conditionally Approved
		Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			
		18. Foundation Care, LLC (NR-PHW061)			Unanimously Approved
		Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			**
		19. Daiichi Sankyo, Inc. (NR-PHW037)			Unanimously Approved
		Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			**
		20. The Hilsinger Company Parent, LLC dba Hilco Vision (NR-PHW036)			Unanimously Conditionally
		Pending registration with DRT			Approved
		Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			
		21. The Hilsinger Company Parent, LLC dba Hilco Vision (NR-PHW080)			Unanimously Conditionally
		Pending registration with DRT			Approved
		Motion to Conditionally Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano			
	22. McGuff Company, Inc. (NR-PHW012) Motion to Approve: J. Sana; 2nd: A. Mariano F. COLLABORATIVE PRACTICE AGREEMENT:				Unanimously Approved
					Approved
		1. Dennise E. Salazar, PA-C			Approved
		A Collaborative Practice Agreement has been signed.			
VIII	Next Board	The next Guam Board of Examiners for Pharmacy Regular Session Meeting is scheduled for October 17,	GBEP	0837	Set Date
	Meeting	2024 at 7:30 a.m.			
IX	Adjournment	Motion to adjourn: J. Sana; 2 nd : A. Mariano	GBEP	0837	Adjourned

Minutes Drafted by: FLAME TREE Freedom Center, Inc.

Date Submitted:

Submitted by the GBEP Secretary:	Date: 11/20/24
Approved by the GBEP with or without changes:	Date:
Certified by or Attested by the Chairperson:	Date: